



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EAST LOTHIAN LICENSING FORUM

WEDNESDAY 31ST AUGUST 2022 MERCAT GRILL

Forum Members Present:

Mr G Blaikie Mr S Baxter Mr D Dickson Ms K Harling Mr R Ross Mr J Thayers

Council Officials Present: Ms F Currie Ms M Scott

Elected Members Present:

Councillor Bruce Councillor McMillan

Clerk:

Ms F Currie

Visitors Present: There were no visitors present at the meeting

Apologies: Mr G Bairden Mr A Podder

Declarations of Interest: There were no Declarations of Interest recorded at the meeting.

1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR 2022/23

Mr Blaikie proposed Mr Dickson for the role of Convener and this was seconded by Mr Ross. Mr Dickson agreed to take on this role until next year. No Secretary was elected.

Mr Dickson thanked everyone for their attendance at today's meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE EAST LOTHIAN LOCAL LICENSING FORUM HELD ON 23RD SEPTEMBER 2021 AND NOTE OF INQUORATE MEETING ON 9TH MARCH 2021 FOR APPROVAL AND MATTERS ARISING

The minute was agreed as an accurate record of the meeting. There were no matters arising.

3. LICENSING STANDARDS OFFICER REPORT

Ms Harling stated she was appointed LSO at the start of June 2022 and had attended two Licensing Board meetings in this role. Ms Harling spoke to her report, which had been circulated with the papers.

Councillor Bruce asked if Ms Harling had looked the reasons for occasional licence requests e.g. whether for specific events or for day to day running of businesses. Ms Harling confirmed that these licenses were being requested for both reasons and as there had been a spike in weddings taking place due to COVID delays, more occasional licenses were being requested. Ms Harling added that other events, such as pop up events were taking place due to companies' trialling new events post-COVID. Ms Harling added that demand for new outdoor venues was still high and this had also increased licence requests.

Ms Harling noted there had been a small increase in occasional license extension requests and overall complaints had increased due to premises being closed for a long time and now reopening post COVID. In general, people seemed to have less tolerance for noise coming from neighbouring premises. Ms Harling also commented on changes in behaviour – with people now going out for an evening's entertainment rather than just a drink in a pub. This has led to more premises hiring bands as entertainment Mr Dickson agreed, referring to an increase in the number of events being hosted at his local bowling club in an effort to attract more customers. Mr Dickson added that a number of places were applying for outdoor licenses to create beer gardens and make their venues more appealing.

Ms Harling explained that when occasional licenses were granted they were hard to take action against. Ms Harling added that a lot of venues wished to extend their license area but then did not have permission to use the land.

Ms Harling stated that if a premises were granted a tables and chairs permit then it is out with the Board's powers to refuse this as it has different rules and regulations.

Ms Harling highlighted difficulties with the current Forum website and added that she may need to set up a new one. She invited suggestions from members on its content and how best to promote it. Mr Thayers suggested that a new forum website should follow the previous template as this covered all relevant information.

Ms Harling said that she has been raising awareness of the Forum during her visits to premises but that further promotion was required to reach all premises in East Lothian. Councillor McMillan agreed that the Forum needed to be better publicised and wider membership encouraged. He added that the licensing policy required review within 18 months of the local Government election and the Forum would be involved in this.

All members were in agreement that more needed to be done to encourage new members into the Forum, with a conscious effort made to encourage younger people to join. Suggestions were made regarding promotion of the Forum in secondary schools and linking in with Queen Margaret University.

Mr Dickson explained that previously the Forum had met in different locations around the county to encourage attendance but finding suitable venues had not always been easy.

Mr Baxter stated that following on from COVID, the cost of living rise and the energy crisis, now was a good time for the licensing trade to be represented and have an influence on the review of licensing policy. Mr Baxter added that better communication between trade organisations would be beneficial to see what help and assistance was available to sustain businesses during this difficult period.

Ms Harling reported that a few premises owners have made her aware of issues recruiting and retaining staff which had impacted on their ability to safely operate and had led in some cases to reductions in opening hours.

Mr Ross agreed giving his own business as an example of early closure due to lack of business and staff. He asked for clarification on whether he needed to remain open during his licensing hours. Ms Harling confirmed that if it was not profitable for his premises to be open then he could close and this information was available in the statement of policy. Ms Harling said she would be happy to join a working group on the review of licensing policy which would allow Forum members to feedback their views to the Board. Mr Thayers confirmed that were was a working group set up for the last review of policy and a comprehensive document had been written up and submitted to the Board but they had not responded.

Mr Thayers noted that there was no longer a health representative on the Forum and that they previously had a leading role.

Members discussed the increase in off sales and home delivery and highlighted a few key issues:

- 70% of alcohol consumed is off sales and this looks as though it increase even further due to economic pressure and the impact of COVID.
- The Covid Recovery Act 2020 is due to expire in September. If businesses wish to continue offering the delivery of alcohol they will need to make an application for a major variation change to their operating procedures by December 2022.
- Members were concerned about large businesses such as Amazon continuing to offer the delivery of alcohol and how they could ensure their delivery drivers were checking the recipients of these items were over 18. The same concern was shared around drivers delivering alcohol for supermarkets and who is responsible for providing the alcohol, the driver or the supermarket.
- Members were concerned that some supermarkets are looking to extend their alcohol selling areas when already local businesses cannot match them in off sales.

Ms Harling said it was her intention to write up a new Covid Recovery document for the website as the current one was outdated. This new document would highlight the changes that licensees need to make.

Decisions

The Forum agreed:

- Ms Harling was to try to gain access to the current forum website or create a new one using the same template as the previous LSO.
- Ms Currie was to follow up with Jim Sherval in NHS Lothian to identify a new health representative for the Forum and to copy Carlo Grilli and Councillor Bruce in to all correspondence.
- Ms Harling to write up a new COVID Recovery document for the website.
- At the December meeting, to consider setting up a working group for the review of licensing policy.

4. POLICE REPORT (VERBAL)

PC Bairden was not present and had not submitted a written report.

He had requested that Forum members be consulted on the type or information they would like to see in future written reports. Ms Currie would take suggestions from members at today's meeting or alternatively they could email her this information.

The following suggestions were made:

- Alcohol related anti-social behaviour statistics; this would include issues were alcohol was a marker in domestic violence incidents.
- Alcohol seizures from underage drinking; this would include which local area if it was in a licensed venue or a public place and if the use of fake ID was involved.
- Alcohol related illnesses, including serious illness and deaths.

Mr Thayers said that the NHS reported their statistics annually and the most recent year showed 12 alcohol deaths within East Lothian; down from 19 the previous year. There were18 alcohol deaths reported in Midlothian, 40 in West Lothian and 102 in Edinburgh. Mr Thayers stated that these deaths were a result of alcohol consumption and the number of deaths from longer term alcohol use would be much higher.

5. SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT LOCAL LICENSING FORUM SURVERY 2022

Ms Currie informed members of the recent survey circulated by the Scottish Government and asked for a volunteer to complete this on behalf of the Forum. Alternatively, members could provide comments on the survey questions by e-mail and she would collate and submit a response on behalf of the Forum. The survey could be completed online and would be open until the end of September..

Mr Thayers offered to complete the survey on behalf of the Forum members.

Decision

The Forum agreed that:

• Mr Thayers would complete the survey on behalf of the Forum.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Ms Currie made the Forum aware that the joint meeting with the Board would take place on 22nd September. This meeting would take place online. Ms Currie asked members to email her with any items they would like to include on the agenda.

Mr Blaikie asked if a flyer could be made for the Forum including upcoming meeting dates to encourage new people to attend. Mr Thayers asked if the Forum had a budget to cover publicity and Ms Currie advised that she was not aware of any specific budget for this work but suggested that Ms Harling check whether monies might be available from within licensing budgets. Ms Currie added that East Lothian Council had an active Twitter feed and it might be possible to advertise the Forum there.

Decision

The Forum agreed:

- Ms Harling would look at creating a flyer to advertise the Forum.
- Mr Blaikie would find out how Edinburgh and Glasgow Councils advertised their Licensing Forums.

7. AGREEMENT OF PROPOSED MEETING DATES/TIMES

Ms Currie explained the arrangements for the joint meeting with the Licensing Board and Forum on 22nd September. She also asked members to consider the proposed date for the next Forum meeting and to agree a suitable venue..

Decision

The date of the next Licensing Forum was confirmed for 10am on Wednesday 30th November 2022 in the Mercat Grill, Whitecraig.